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Corporate Profile

LaBarge Inc is broad-based provider of electronics to technology-driven

companies in diverse markets The company provides its customers with

sophisticated electronic and electromechanical products through contract

design and manufacturing services Headquartered in St Louis LaBarge

has operations in Arkansas Missouri Oklahoma Pennsylvania Texas and

Wisconsin

Our Vision

We succeed by helping our customers succeed

Our Mission

We create value for our stakeholders customers employees investors

and suppliers by partnering with our customers to provide exceptional

manufacturing solutions

Statements contained herein relating to LaBarge Inc which are not historical facts

are forward-looking statements within the meaning of the federal securities laws

Forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties Future events and the

companys actual results could differ materially from those contemplated by those

forward-looking statements For summary of important factors that could cause

the companys actual results to differ materially from those projected in or inferred

by the forward-looking statements see page 14 of this annual report
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We believe we are managing the business prudently

and effectively in this challenging environment LaBarge is well

positioned to resume growth when the economy recovers

LaBarge was able to make these

targeted investments amid global eco

nomic downturn because of its healthy

financial condition These important steps

form the foundation for the next phase

of the companys growth We believe we

are managing the business prudently and

effectively in this challenging environment

and as result feel that LaBarge is well-

positioned to resume growth when the

economy recovers

Report on Our Year

Although down from the previous fiscal

years levels fiscal 2009 results were bol

stered by strength in the defense market

sector excellent operating efficiencies

internal cost reductions and the acquisi

tion of Pensar Electronic Solutions Unfor

tunately our full-year performance was

also negatively impacted by weakness in

the natural resources and industrial market

sectors and the bankruptcy of Eclipse

Aviation Corporation former customer

At $273.4 million fiscal 2009 net sales

declined just percent from the record

$279.5 million achieved the year before

buoyed by $25.9 million of second-half rev

enues from the Pensar acquisition Fiscal

2009 net earnings were $10.3 million or

$0.64 per diluted share down 30 percent

from the record $14.8 million or $0.92 per

diluted share year earlier Fiscal 2009

net earnings included an after-tax net loss

of $0.02 per diluted share from the Pensar

acquisition In addition fiscal 2009 net

earnings were negatively impacted by

non-recurring after-tax net charge of

$3.7 million or $0.23 per diluted share

related to the Eclipse bankruptcy which

is detailed beginning on page 14

On brighter note operating activities

provided net cash of $296 million in fiscal

2009 compared with $18.0 million in fiscal

2008 During fiscal 2009 major portion

of cash flow from operating activities was

channeled toward our record $10.8 million

in capital expenditures for new manufac

turing equipment and facility upgrades

to increase operating efficiencies and

expand capabilities The $45.4 million

acquisition of Pensar increased total debt

to $45.5 million at fiscal 2009 year-end

up from $15.6 million year earlier Stock

holders equity at fiscal 2009 year-end

was $103.2 million up 13 percent from

$91.5 million year earlier We expect to

achieve strong cash flow from operations
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again in fiscal 2010 which we plan to use

primarily to reduce debt

Shipments to customers in the defense

natural resources industrial and medical

market sectors comprised 92 percent of

fiscal 2009 net sales The largest contribu

tor was shipments to defense customers

which comprised 46 percent of full-year

sales compared with 38 percent in fiscal

2008 In actual dollars fiscal 2009 sales

from the defense market sector increased

18 percent from year earlier reflecting

increased shipments from variety of

defense programs

$29.6 millionin

net cash provided by

operating activities

Shipments to natural resources cus

tomers represented 18 percent of fiscal

2009 net sales versus 23 percent in

fiscal 2008 In actual dollars fiscal 2009

sales from the natural resources market

sector declined 23 percent compared with

the previous fiscal year due to overall

weakness in the sector Approximately

LaBarge nc 2009



19 percent of LaBarges fiscal 2009 natural

resources sales was attributable to the

Pensar acquisition

Shipments to industrial customers

represented 18 percent of net sales in both

the 2009 and 2008 fiscal years
In actual

dollars fiscal 2009 sales from the indus

trial market sector declined percent from

the previous year Approximately percent

of fiscal 2009 industrial sales was attribut

able to the Pensar acquisition

Shipments to medical customers rep

resented percent of fiscal 2009 net sales

versus percent in fiscal 2008 In actual

dollars fiscal 2009 sales from the medical

sector grew 24 percent compared with

fiscal 2008 primarily due to the addition

of the Pensar operation which contributed

approximately 35 percent of fiscal 2009

medical sales

Shipments to commercial aerospace

customers were percent of fiscal 2009

revenues compared with percent in

fiscal 2008 In actual dollars fiscal 2009

sales from the commercial aerospace

market sector declined 55 percent com

pared with fiscal 2008 due to cessation of

shipments to Eclipse Aviation in the fiscal

2009 second quarter

New Business Generation

In terms of new business genera

tion bookings in fiscal 2009 were down

approximately 25 percent compared with

our record year in 2008 This weakness

was primarily attribut

able to the industrial

and natural resources

market sectors where

the majority of our cur

rent business is tied to

our customers capital

equipment purchases many of which have

been deferred Lethargic bookings in these

market sectors coupled with the second-

quarter removal of $39.6 million in Eclipse

orders drove backlog from year-end high

of $221.3 million in fiscal 2008 to $168.0

million at fiscal 2009 year-end

We continue to have vigorous effort

to cultivate new customers and expand

existing customer relationships Our long-

term strategy for identifying new business

opportunities is helping us win major new

pieces of business in the defense sector

as well as establish new customer relation

ships in commercial and industrial market

sectors We are particularly pleased about

several significant defense opportunities

that are currently in process and will posi

tion La Barge well on long-term military

platforms For example we expect fiscal

2010 will include expansion of our involve

ment on the Black Hawk helicopter and

joint Striker Fighter programs as well

as contract wins on some key new pro

grams In addition we are optimistic about

several new relationships that are forming

with commercial customers most notably

in the medical and natural resources

market sectors

Acquisition of Pensar

Electronic Solutions LLC

The single most significant event in

fiscal 2009 was the acquisition of Pensar

contract electronics manufacturer special

izing in designing engineering and manu

facturing low-to-medium volume high-mix

complex printed circuit board assemblies

$45.4 millionpurchase price

for the acquisition ofPensar

Electronic Solutions

LaBarge Inc 2009
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Selected Financial Data

in thousands except per-share amounts

FISCAL YEAR ENDED

JUNE 28 JUNE 29 JULY JULY JULY

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Net sales $273368 $279485 $235203 190089 182294

Pretax earnings 16667 23838 17999 15964 16865

Net earnings 10338 14827 1343 9708 10870

Basic net earnings per share 0.67 0.98 0.75 0.64 0.72

Diluted net earnings per share 0.64 0.92 0.71 0.60 0.68

Total assets $190835 160472 142582 140350 119937

Long-term debt 45488 5129 11431 22193 21605

No cash dividends have been paid during the aforementioned periods

Stock Price and Cash Dividends LaBarges common stock is listed on the NYSE Amex under the trading symbol of LB The following table

indicates the quarterly high and low sale prices for the stock for the fiscal years 2009 and 2008 as reported by the NYSE Amex

Holders As of August 28 2009 there were 1814 holders of record of LaBarges common stock

Dividend Policy The Company has paid no cash dividends on its common stock The Company currently anticipates that it will retain any future

earnings for the development operation and expansion of its business and for possible acquisitions and does not intend to pay cash dividends in

the foreseeable future

Comparison of Five-Year Cumulative Total Return

Among LaBarge Inc AMEX Composite Index Russell 2000 Index and Peer Group

$300-

--1
6/05 6/06 6/07 6/08 6/09

LaBarge Inc Russell 2000 Peer Group0-- -A-

FISCAL 2009 HIGH LOW

July September 2008 $16.29 $1 1.62 July September 2007 $12.99 9.70

October December 2008 15.72 8.47 October- December2007 15.10 11.75

January March 2009 14.63 4.45 January March 2008 15.00 10.16

April June 2009 9.53 6.94 April June 2008 14.20 11.91

FISCAL 2008 HIGH LOW

$250

$200

$150

$100.

$50

$0

6/04

Assuming $100 was invested on June 30 2004 in the stock or index including reinvestment of dividends and fiscal year-end of June 30

The Peer Group is comprised of KeyTronic Corporation SigmaTron International Inc Sparton Corporation Sypris Solutions Inc and Three-Five

Systems Inc

13 LaBarge Inc 2009



Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Forward-Looking Statements Overview

Certain sections of this report contain forward-looking statements

within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act

of 1934 as amended that relate to future events or the Companys

future financial performance The Company has attempted to identify

these statements by terminology including believe anticipate

plan expect estimate intend seek goal may will

should can continue or the negative of these terms or other

comparable terminology These statements include statements about

the Companys market opportunity its growth strategy competition

expected activities and the adequacy of its available cash resources

These statements may be found in the sections of this report entitled

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and

Results of Operations Business Risk Factors and Legal Pro

ceedings Although the Company believes that in making any such

statement its expectations are based on reasonable assumptions

readers are cautioned that matters subject to forward-looking state

ments involve known and unknown risks and uncertainties including

economic regulatory competitive and other factors that may cause

the Company or its industrys actual results levels of activity per

formance or achievements to be materially different from any future

results levels of activity performance or achievements expressed or

implied by these forward-looking statements These statements are

not guarantees of future performance and are subject to risks uncer

tainties and assumptions as described in Item 1A Risk Factors of

this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Given these uncertainties undue reliance should not be placed on

such forward-looking statements Unless otherwise required by law

the Company disclaims an obligation to update any such factors or to

publicly announce the results of any revisions to any forward-looking

statements contained herein to reflect future events or developments

The Company designs engineers and produces sophisticated elec

tronic and electromechanical systems and devices and complex inter

connect systems on contract basis for its customers Engineering

and manufacturing facilities are located in Arkansas Missouri Okla

homa Pennsylvania Texas and Wisconsin

The Companys customers conduct business in variety of markets

with significant revenues from customers in the defense govern

ment systems medical aerospace natural resources industrial and

other commercial markets As contract manufacturer revenues are

impacted primarily by the volume of shipments in the particular period

The Company provides information about its end markets to demon

strate the diversity of its customer base which the Company believes

helps to reduce potential volatility
in its revenue stream However the

Company does not target customers in individual markets but rather

targets companies whose manufacturing requirements matched the

services and capabilities the Company provides Within all end mar

kets gross profit margins vary widely by customer and by contract

The most significant factors influencing profitability in particular

period are the mix of contracts with deliveries in that period and the

volume of sales in relation to the Companys fixed costs during that

period Delivery schedules are generally determined by the Companys

customers The significant factors that influence the
profitability

of the

individual contracts include the competitive environment in which

the contract was bid ii the experience level of the Company in manu

facturing these particular products iii the stability of the design of

the products and iv the accuracy of the Companys original cost

estimates as reflected in the sale price for the products

The Company has centralized sales organization Though the sell

ing and marketing personnel have customer and prospective cus

tomer focus they are not limited to exclusively developing specific

end market

On November 25 2008 Eclipse Aviation Corporation Eclipse

customer of the Company announced that it filed petition for relief

under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code On March

2009 the Eclipse bankruptcy was converted to Chapter liquidation

The Eclipse bankruptcy negatively impacted the Companys financial

results for the fiscal year ended June 28 2009 as described in more

detail throughout the Managements Discussion and Analysis of Finan

cial Condition and Results of Operations and in Notes and to the

Consolidated Financial Statements filed with this report The end mar

ket for sales to Eclipse was commercial aerospace

14 LaBarge Inc 2009



Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
continued

Results of Operations Fiscal 2009 2008 2007

Backlog

in thousands

FISCAL YEAR ENDED

CHANGE FISCAL JUNE 28 JUNE 29 JULY

2009 VS 2008 2009 2008 2007

Defense 10010 $108400 118410 78108

Natural resources 3589 14469 18058 28167

Industrial 9929 10844 20773 17438

Medical 9057 20552 11495 10713

Government systems 1944 1799 3743 14266

Commercial aerospace 40665 6562 47227 56126

Other 3795 5382 1587 1391

Total backlog $53285 $168008 $221293 $206209

The backlog at June 28 2009 included $20.4 million from the newly

acquired Pensar operation Absent the Pensar acquisition the backlog

from June 29 2008 to June 28 2009 decreased by $73.7 million The

$40.7 million reduction in commercial aerospace is primarily related

to the Eclipse bankruptcy discussed in more detail in Notes and to

the Consolidated Financial Statements The remaining decline in back

log results from reduced orders in several market sectors due to the

economic downturn The increase in medical backlog resulted from

the addition of $10.7 million of backlog from the Pensar acquisition

The $15.1 million increase in backlog from July 2007 to June 29

2008 primarily resulted from the $40.3 million increase in backlog for

the defense market offset by $10.1 million decrease in backlog in the

natural resources market and an $8.9 million decrease in backlog in

the commercial aerospace market The increase in defense was driven

by several large contracts related to producing cable and electronic

assemblies for variety of defense applications including military air

craft missile systems radar systems and shipboard programs Natural

resources backlog declined as large contract that was booked in fis

cal year 2007 shipped in fiscal year 2008 The decrease in commercial

aerospace related to long-term contract that was booked prior to

2007 which shipped $8.0 million in fiscal year 2008

Approximately $22.9 million of the backlog at fiscal 2009 year-end is

scheduled to ship beyond the next 12 months pursuant to the ship

ment schedules of the contracts that comprise backlog This compares

with $48.4 million at fiscal year-end 2008 The decrease is due to the

removal of Eclipse orders from the fiscal 2009 backlog

Net Sales

in thousands

FISCAL YEAR ENDED

CHANGE FISCAL JUNE 28 JUNE 29 JULY

2009 VS 2008 2009 2008 2007

Defense $19055 $126294 107239 87313

Natural resources 15125 50250 65375 57314

Industrial 1280 49574 50854 36805

Medical 4783 24762 19979 7613

Government systems 6462 4103 10565 21629

Commercial aerospace 11627 9402 21029 18237

Other 4539 8983 4444 6292

Total net sales 6117 $273368 $279485 $235203

The Pensar acquisition described in Note to the Consolidated Finan

cial Statements contributed $25.9 million of net sales to the 2009

fiscal year

The overall decrease in net sales between fiscal years 2009 and

2008 was primarily due to the economic downturn The $19.1 mil

lion increase in defense sales in fiscal year 2009 related to several

contracts to produce cable and electronic assemblies for variety of

defense applications including military aircraft missile systems radar

systems and shipboard programs Sales to customers in the natural

resources market were negatively impacted by the overall economic

downturn and lower commodity prices in the mining and oil and gas

industries This downturn was partially offset by $9.7 million of natural

resources sales from the Pensar acquisition in the wind-power gen

eration sector The increase in medical sales was driven by $8.7 million

of sales from the Pensar acquisition Government systems sales were

down as the Company completed large multi-year contract for bag

gage scanning equipment in December 2008 Commercial aerospace

sales decreased due to the bankruptcy of Eclipse described in Notes

and to the Consolidated Financial Statements The increase

in other markets was primarily due to $5.0 million of sales from the

Pensar acquisition

The increase in sales between fiscal years 2008 and 2007 was the

result of strength in several markets The increase in defense sales

in fiscal year 2008 relates to several multi-year contracts to produce

cable and electronic assemblies for variety of defense applications

including military aircraft missile systems radar systems and ship

board programs The increase in natural resources reflected the strong

demand for products in the mining industry The increase in the indus

trial markets was result of strong demand and expanded capabilities

for the production of heavy mechanical assemblies

15 LaBarge Inc 2009



Condition and Results of OperationsManagements Discussion and Analysis of Financial

continued

Sales to the Companys 10 largest customers represented 64.4% of

total revenue in fiscal 2009 versus 69.6% in fiscal 2008 and 69.9%

in fiscal 2007 The Companys top three customers and their relative

contribution to fiscal year 2009 sales were Owens-Illinois Group Inc

14.2% Raytheon Company 8.8% and Schlumberger Ltd 8.5% The

Companys top three customers for fiscal year 2008 were Owens-Illi

nois Group Inc 14.2% Schlumberger Ltd 11.2% and Modular Mining

Systems Inc 9.4% The Companys top three customers for fiscal year

2007 were Schlumberger Ltd 12.9% Northrop Grumman Systems

Corp 9.7% and Modular Mining Systems Inc 9.6%

Cost of Sales and Gross Profit

dollars in thousands ________________________

FISCAL YEAR ENDED

CHANGE FISCAL JUNE 28 JUNE 29 JULY

2009 VS 2008 2009 2008 2007

Cost of sales 1915 $222583 224498 $189408

Percent of

net sales 110 basis pts 81.4% 80.3% 80.5%

Gross profit 4202 50785 54987 45795

Gross profit

margin 110 basis pts 18.6% 19.7% 19.5%

Gross profit margins vary significantly by contract The most significant

factors influencing profitability
in particular period are the mix of

contracts and orders with deliveries in that period and the volume of

sales in relation to the Companys fixed costs during the period Deliv

ery schedules are generally determined by the Companys customers

The significant factors that influence the profitability
of individual con

tracts include the competitive environment in which the contract

was bid ii the experience level of the Company in manufacturing the

particular products iii the stability
of the design of the products

and iv the accuracy of the Companys original cost estimates

Cost of sales for the fiscal year ended June 28 2009 decreased $1.9

million compared with the prior fiscal year driven by the fiscal year

2009 sales decline of $6.1 million Gross profit forfiscal year 2009 was

down $4.2 million and gross profit margin was down 110 basis points

versus the prior fiscal year
The decline in gross profit margin from

19.7% in fiscal year 2008 to 18.6% in fiscal year 2009 was primarily

driven by the write-down of inventory related to the Eclipse program

described in Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements and the

acquisition of Pensar In addition gross profit margin was negatively

impacted by percentage drop in sales that exceeded the percentage

drop in indirect manufacturing expenses

The write-down of the Eclipse related inventory increased cost of sales

and reduced gross profit by $4.2 million This write-down reduced the

reported gross profit margin by 150 basis points

The acquisition of Pensar added cost of sales of $23.6 million and gross

profit of $2.3 million in the fiscal year ended June 28 2009 The Pen

sar operation generated gross profit margin of 8.8% in the fiscal year

ended June 28 2009 The Pensar gross profit margin was negatively

impacted by the step up of work in process and finished goods inven

tory as part of the allocation of the acquisition purchase price which

added $218000 to cost of sales recorded by the Pensar operation

Excluding the Pensar operation the gross profit margin would have

been 19.6% for the twelve months ended June 28 2009 decrease of

10 basis points compared with the same period in fiscal 2008

Absent the Eclipse write-off and the impact of the Pensar acquisition

the gross profit margin would have been 21.3% for the fiscal year ended

June 28 2009 which is 160 basis points higher than the fiscal year

ended June 29 2008

During the fiscal years ended June 29 2008 and July 2007 the Com

panys gross margins were negatively impacted by higher than antici

pated labor and material costs on certain early-stage long-term con

tracts that were not fully recoverable from the Companys customers

and start-up expenses on significant new contract for the assembly

of heavy mechanical products in the industrial market In addition in

the fiscal years ended June 29 2008 and July 2007 the Company

recorded costs of $248000 and $738000 respectively to account

for the actual and anticipated loss on current and future shipments on

one particular defense program for which the Company experienced

significant design changes

Selling and Administrative Expense

dollars in thousands

FISCAL YEAR ENDED

CHANGE FISCAL JUNE 28 JUNE 29 JULY

2009 VS 2008 2009 2008 2007

Selling and

administrative

expense 3253 $32810 29557 $26269

Percent of

net sales 140 basis pts 12.0% 10.6% 11.2%

In fiscal year 2009 the major factors increasing selling and adminis

trative expense as compared with fiscal 2008 were the write off of

the Eclipse accounts receivable $3.7 million the acquisition of Pen

sar $2.1 million and higher salaries and wages due to head count and

wage inflation $1.4 million Partially offsetting these increases were

lower incentive compensation expense $3.1 million lower commis

sions $575000 and reduced personnel recruiting and relocation

expenses $259000
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Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
continued

Selling and administrative expense in fiscal 2008 increased from the

prior year due to higher salaries and wages of $700000 caused by

increased head count and wage inflation higher incentive compensa

tion expense of $1.4 million higher medical expenses of $240000 and

increased personnel recruiting and relocation expense of $266000

Interest Expense

in thousands

Interest expense decreased in fiscal year 2009 from the prior year due

to lower average interest rates The debt level increased in the fiscal

year period ended June 28 2009 as result of borrowings to finance

the Pensar acquisition

Interest expense decreased in fiscal year 2008 from the prior year due

to lower average debt levels

Income Tax Expense

in thousands

FISCAL YEAR ENDED

CHANGE FISCAL JUNE 28 JUNE 29 JULY
2009 VS 2008 2009 2008 2007

Income tax expense $2682 $6329 $9011 $6656

The effective income tax rate for fiscal 2009 was 40% compared with

38% and 37% in fiscal years 2008 and 2007 respectively

Net Earnings and Earnings Per Share

amounts in thousands except per-share data

FISCAL YEAR ENDED

JUNE 28 JUNE 29 JULY

2009 2008 2007

Net earnings $10338 14827 $11343

Basic net earnings per share 0.67 0.98 0.75

Diluted net earnings per share 0.64 0.92 0.71

FISCAL YEAR ENDED

JUNE 28 JUNE 29 JULY

2009 2008 2007

Average common shares

outstanding basic 15498 15198 15143

Dilutive options and

nonvested shares 546 940 904

Adjusted average common

shares outstanding diluted 16044 16138 16047

All outstanding stock options and nonvested shares at June 28 2009

June 29 2008 and July 2007 were dilutive The stock options expire

in various periods through 2014 The Company had awarded certain

key executives nonvested shares tied to the Companys fiscal year

2008 financial performance The compensation expense related to

these awards is recognized quarterly The nonvested shares vest over

the next fiscal year

FISCAL YEAR ENDED

JUNE 28 JUNE 29 JULY

2009 2008 2007

Net cash provided by

operatingactivities $29620 $18047 $11951

Net cash used provided

by investing activities 56500 5185 3592

Net cash provided used by

financing activities 29531 11608 16098

Net increase decrease in cash

and cash equivalents 2651 1254 555

The Companys operations generated $29.6 million of cash in fiscal

2009 compared with $18.0 million in fiscal 2008 The Pensar acquisi

tion generated positive operating cash flow of $2.0 million for fiscal

year 2009 The primary driver of the increased operating cash flow

was $42.5 million reduction in disbursements for inventory purchas

es and other costs of production The lower inventory purchases and

other production costs were primarily driven by the reduction of sales

volume in fiscal year 2009 exclusive of the Pensar acquisition and

reduction of purchases of long lead time materials This increase in

net cash provided by operations was partially offset by reduction of

cash receipts from trade receivables of $25.0 million and reduction

of cash received from cash advances from customers of $5.2 million

in fiscal year 2009 compared with fiscal year 2008 In addition the

cash used for payroll-related expenditures increased by $5.6 million

in fiscal year 2009 compared with fiscal year 2008 Income tax pay

ments made during fiscal year 2009 were $4.6 million lower than in

fiscal 2008

The Companys investing activities used $56.5 million in fiscal year

2009 compared with $5.2 million used in fiscal year 2008 The primary

driver was the $45.1 million used to acquire Pensar see Note ito the

Consolidated Financial Statements In addition capital expenditures

used $10.8 million including the Companys $2.5 million purchase of

the Tulsa manufacturing facility which had been leased in prior years

Also the Company purchased $4.2 million of surface mount technology

equipment to expand its capabilities in Tulsa and Pittsburgh

CHANGE FISCAL

2009 VS 2008

Interest expense $165

FISCAL YEAR ENDED

JUNE 28 JUNE 29
2009 2008

$1294 $1459

Liquidity And Capital Resources

JULY

2007

$2241

Cash Flow

in thousands
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Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

continued

The $41.1 million increase in cash provided by financing activities is

primarily due to the $35.0 million of senior term debt to finance the

Pensar acquisition

The Companys operations generated $18.0 million of cash in fiscal

year 2008 compared with $11.9 million in fiscal year 2007 The primary

driver of the $6.1 million increase was the cash collected from custom

ers which was $46.8 million higher in fiscal year 2008 compared with

fiscal year 2007 This was the result of increased sales levels partially

offset by $37.9 million increase in cash disbursements primarily for

purchase of raw materials and other production costs to support the

higher sales levels Cash paid for compensation costs was $4.1 mil

lion higher in fiscal year 2008 due to higher headcount Cash used for

incentive compensation payments was $2.2 million higher in fiscal year

2008 In addition cash advances received from customers was $2.5

million higher in fiscal year 2008 compared with fiscal year 2007

Net cash flows from investing activities was use of cash of $5.2

million in fiscal year 2008 compared with source of cash of $3.6

million in fiscal year 2007 The positive cash flow in fiscal year 2007

was driven by $9.6 million of cash received from the sale of build

ing See Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for more

detailed discussion This was offset by $6.2 million of purchases of

capital equipment and software The capital purchases in fiscal year

2008 were $5.3 million

Cash flow used in financing activities in fiscal year 2008 of $11.6 mil

lion and of $16.1 million in fiscal year 2007 reflects repayments of both

short- and long-term debt

Capital Structure

The Company entered into senior secured loan agreement on

December 22 2008 amended on January 30 2009 The following is

summary of certain provisions of the agreement

revolving credit facility up to $30.0 million available for direct bor

rowings or letters of credit The facility is based on borrowing base

formula equal to the sum of 85% of eligible receivables and 35% of

eligible
inventories As of June 28 2009 there were no outstanding

loans under the revolving credit facility As of June 28 2009 letters

of credit issued were $1.1 million leaving an aggregate of $28.9 mil

lion available under the revolving credit facility This credit
facility

matures on December 28 2011

An aggregate $45.0 million term loan with principal payments begin

ning in September 2009 at quarterly rate of $2.0 million increas

ing to $2.5 million in September 2010 and increasing to $2.7 million

in September 2011 The balance is due on December 28 2011

Interest on the revolving facility and the term loan is calculated at

base rate or LIBOR plus stated spread based on certain ratios For

the fiscal year ended June 28 2009 the average rate was approxi

mately 3.9%

All loans are secured by substantially all the assets of the Company

other than real estate

Covenants and certain financial performance criteria consisting

of Earnings Before Interest Taxes Depreciation and Amortization

EBITDA in relation to debt minimum net worth and operating cash

flow in relation to fixed charges The Company was in compliance

with its borrowing agreement covenants as of and during the fiscal

year ended June 28 2009 The write-off of certain assets related to

Eclipse during the fiscal year ended June 28 2009 did not impact the

Companys debt covenant compliance

To mitigate the risk associated with interest rate volatility during the

period ended June 28 2009 the Company entered into an interest

rate swap agreement with bank This pay-fixed receive-floating rate

swap limits the Companys exposure to interest rate variability
and

allows for better cash flow control The swap is not used for speculat

ing purposes

Under the agreement the Company fixed the interest payments to

base rate of 1.89% plus stated spread based on certain ratios The

beginning notional amount is $35.0 million which will amortize simul

taneously with the term loan schedule in the associated loan agree

ment and will mature on December 28 2011

The interest rate swap agreement has been designated as cash flow

hedging instrument under SFAS No 133 Accounting for Derivative

Instruments and Hedging Activities and the Company has formally

documented designated and assessed the effectiveness of the inter

est rate swap The financial statement impact of ineffectiveness for

the fiscal year ended June 28 2009 was de-minimus
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Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Other Long-Term Debt

Other long-term debt includes capital lease agreements with outstand

ing balances totaling $238000 at June 28 2009 and $336000 at

June 29 2008

The aggregate maturities of long-term obligations are as follows for the

periods presented

FISCAL YEAR

2010 6162

2011 12069

2012 27257

2013

2014

Total $45488

FISCAL YEAR ENDED

JUNE 28 JUNE 29
2009 2008

$103151 $91469

45488 15629

Management believes the
availability

of funds going forward from cash

generated from operations and available bank credit facilities should

be sufficient to support the planned operations and capital expendi

tures of the Companys business for the next two fiscal years

The following table shows LaBarges contractual obligations as of

June 28 2009

PAYMENT DUE BY PERIOD

LESS MORE
THAN THAN

CONTRACTUAL

OBLIGATIONS TOTAL YEAR YEARS YEARS YEARS

Long-term debt $45250 $6000 $39250

Capital lease

obligations 238 162 76

Operating lease

obligations 8186 2658 2727 1135 1666

Total $53674 $8820 $42053 1135 1666

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with account

ing principles generally accepted in the United States of America

requires management to make estimates and assumptions in certain

circumstances that affect amounts reported in the accompanying

consolidated financial statements In preparing these financial state

ments management has made its best estimates and judgment of

certain amounts included in the financial statements The Company

believes there is likelihood that materially different amounts would

be reported under different conditions or using different assumptions

related to the accounting policies described below Application of

these accounting policies involves the exercise of judgment and use of

assumptions as to future uncertainties and as result actual results

could differ from these estimates The Companys senior management

discusses the accounting policies described below with the Audit

Committee of the Companys Board of Directors on periodic basis

The following discussion of critical accounting policies is intended to

bring to the attention of readers those accounting policies that man

agement believes are critical to the Companys consolidated financial

statements and other financial disclosures It is not intended to be

comprehensive list of all of the Companys significant accounting

policies that are more fully described in the Notes to the Consolidated

Financial Statements included with this Annual Report on Form 10-K

for the fiscal year ended June 28 2009

continued

in thousands

in thousands

The following table shows LaBarges equity and total debt positions

Stockholders Equity and Debt

in thousands

Stockholders equity

Total Debt
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Condition and Results of OperationsManagements Discussion and Analysis of Financial

continued

Revenue Recognition and Cost of Sales

The Companys revenue is derived from units and services delivered

pursuant to contracts The Company has significant number of

contracts for which revenue is accounted for under the percentage

of completion method using the units of delivery as the measure of

completion This method is consistent with Statement of Position

81-1 Accounting for Performance of Construction-Type and Certain

Production-Type Contracts SOP 81-1 The percentage of total rev

enue recognized from contracts within the scope of SOP 81-1 is gener

ally
40-60% of total revenue in any given quarter These contracts are

primarily fixed price contracts that vary widely in terms of size length

of performance period and expected gross profit margins Under the

units of delivery method the Company recognizes revenue when title

transfers which is usually upon shipment of the product or completion

of the service

The Company also sells products under purchase agreements supply

contracts and purchase orders that are not within the scope of SOP

81-1 The Company provides goods from continuing production over

period of time The Company builds units to the customer specifica

tions and based on firm purchase orders from the customer The pur

chase orders tend to be of relatively short duration and customers

place orders on periodic basis The pricing is generally fixed for some

length of time and the quantities are based on individual purchase

orders Revenue is recognized in accordance with Staff Accounting

Bulletin No 104 Revenue Recognition Revenue is recognized on

substantially all transactions when title transfers which is usually

upon shipment

Therefore revenue for contracts within the scope of SOP 81-1 and for

those not within the scope of SOP 81-1 is recognized when title trans

fers which is usually upon shipment or completion of the service

However the cost of sales recognized under both contract types is

determined differently The percentage-of-completion method for

contracts that are within the scope of SOP 81-1 gives effect to the

most recent contract value and estimates of cost at completion Con

tract costs generally include all direct costs such as materials direct

labor subcontracts and indirect costs identifiable with or allocable to

the contracts Learning or start-up costs including tooling and set

up costs incurred in connection with existing contracts are charged

to existing contracts The contract costs do not include any sales

marketing or general and administrative costs Revenue is calculated

as the number of units shipped multiplied by the sales price per unit

The Company estimates the total revenue of the contract and the total

contract costs and calculates the contract cost percentage and gross

profit margin The gross profit during period is equal to the earned

revenue for the period times the estimated contract gross profit

margin Thus if no changes to estimates were made the procedure

results in every dollar of earned revenue having the same cost of

earned revenue percentage and gross profit percentages This method

is applied consistently on all of the contracts accounted for under

SOP 81-1

The Company periodically reviews all estimates to complete as

required by SOP 81-1 and the estimated total cost and expected gross

profit are revised as required over the life of the contract The revi

sion to the estimated total cost is accounted for as change of an

estimate cumulative catch up adjustment is recorded in the period

of the change in the estimated costs to complete the contract There

fore cost of sales and gross profit
in period includes cumulative

catch-up adjustment to reflect the adjustment of previously recog

nized profit associated with all prior period revenue recognized based

on the current estimate of gross profit margin as appropriate and

an entry to record the current period costs of sales and related gross

profit margin based on the current period sales multiplied by the cur

rent estimate of the gross profit margin on the contract Cumulative

adjustments are reported as component of cost of sales

For contracts accounted for in accordance with SOP 81-1 manage

ments estimates of material labor and overhead costs on long-term

contracts are critical to the Company Due to the size length of time

and nature of many of our contracts the estimation of costs through

completion is complicated and subject to many variables Total con

tract cost estimates are largely based on negotiated or estimated

material costs historical labor performance trends business base and

other economic projections Factors that influence these estimates

include inflationary trends technical and schedule risk performance

trends asset utilization and anticipated labor rates

The development of estimates of costs at completion involves proce

dures and personnel in all areas that provide financial or production

information on the status of contracts Estimates of each significant

contracts value and estimate of costs at completion are reviewed and

reassessed quarterly Changes in these estimates result in recogni

tion of cumulative adjustments to the contract profit in the period in

which the change in estimate is made When the current estimate of

costs indicates loss will be incurred on the contract provision is

made in the current period for the total anticipated loss as required by

SOP 81-1

Due to the significance of judgment in the estimation process

described above it is likely that different cost of sales amounts could

be recorded if we used different assumptions or if the underlying

circumstances were to change Changes in underlying assumptions

estimates or circumstances may adversely or positively affect future

financial performance
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Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial

continued

In summary the cumulative gross profit margin recognized through

the end of the current period on contract will equal the current esti

mate of the gross profit margin on the contract multiplied by the con

tract revenues recognized through the end of the current period The

current period gross profit
will equal current period sales multiplied

by the expected gross profit margin on percentage basis on the

contract plus or minus any net effect of cumulative adjustments to

prior period sales under the contract

In addition when there is an anticipated loss on contract provision

for the entire loss is recorded in the period when the anticipated loss

is determined The loss is reported as component of cost of sales

Therefore the cumulative gross profit margin recognized through the

end of the current period on contract with an estimated loss will

equal the current estimate of the gross profit margin on the contract

multiplied by the contract revenues recognized through the end of the

current period plus the provision for the additional loss on contract

revenues yet to be recognized The current period gross profit on

contract with loss reserve will equal current period sales at 0%

gross profit margin plus or minus any net effect of cumulative adjust

ments to the loss reserve based on any changes to the estimated total

loss on the contract

This method of recording costs for contracts under SOP 81-1 is equiva

lent to Alternative as described in paragraph 80 of SOP 81-1

The contracts that are not subject to SOP 81-1 are not subject to

estimated costs of completion Cost of sales under these contracts are

based on the actual cost of material labor and overhead charged to

each job The contract costs do not include any selling and administra

tive expenses The Company generally performs the work under fixed

price arrangements so the
profit may be influenced by the accuracy

of the estimates used at the time particular job is bid as reflected

in the sales price for the product including material costs inflation

labor costs both hours and rates complexity of the work and asset

utilization

During fiscal year 2007 the Company entered into an agreement

with an industrial customer to manufacture and supply certain parts

Under the Financial Accounting Standards Boards FASB Emerging

Issues Task Force EITF No 99-19 Reporting Revenue Gross as

Principal versus Net as an Agent the cost of the supplied parts is

netted against the invoice price to determine net sales when the part

is shipped For the fiscal year ended June 28 2009 the Companys net

sales recognized under this contract were $13.0 million related to the

manufactured assemblies and $493000 related to the supplied parts

Condition and Results of Operations

On very limited number of transactions at customers request

the Company will recognize revenue when title passes but prior to

the shipment of the product to the customer As of June 28 2009

the Company has recognized revenue on products for which title has

transferred but the product has not been shipped to the customer of

$762000 The Company recognizes revenue for storage and other

related services as the services are provided

Inventories

Inventories other than work-in-process inventoried costs relating to

those contracts accounted for under SOP 81-1 are carried at the lower

of cost or market value

Inventoried costs relating to contracts accounted for under SOP 81-1

are stated at the actual production cost including overhead tooling

and other related non-recurring costs incurred to date reduced by the

amounts identified with revenue recognized on units delivered Sell

ing and administrative expenses are not included in inventory costs

Inventoried costs related to these contracts are reduced as appropri

ate by charging any amounts in excess of estimated realizable value to

cost of sales The costs attributed to units delivered under these con

tracts are based on the estimated average cost of all units expected

to be produced This average cost utilizes as appropriate the learning

curve concept which anticipates predictable decrease in unit costs

as tasks and production techniques become more efficient through

repetition In accordance with industry practice inventories include

amounts relating to long-term contracts that will not be realized in one

year Since the inventory balance is dependent on the estimated cost

at completion of contract inventory is impacted by all of the factors

described in the Revenue Recognition and Cost of Sales section above

Inventoried costs related to those contracts not covered by SOP 81-1

are carried at the lower of cost or market

In addition management regularly reviews all inventory for obsoles

cence to determine whether any additional write-down is necessary

Various factors are considered in making this determination including

expected program life recent sales history predicted trends and mar

ket conditions If actual demand or market conditions are less favor

able than those projected by management additional inventory write-

downs may be required For the fiscal years ended June 28 2009 June

29 2008 and July 2007 expense for obsolete or slow-moving inven

tory excluding the charges related to Eclipse as described in Note

to the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements charged to

income before income taxes was $1.5 million $1.9 million and $1.3

million respectively
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Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The Company evaluates goodwill for impairment on an annual basis

as well as whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that

the carrying amount may not be recoverable from its estimated future

cash flows Potential impairment of goodwill is assessed by compar

ing the carrying value of the reporting unit to its estimated fair value

which is measured using both discounted cash flow analysis and

comparison of markets multiples for peer companies If the carrying

value of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value an impairment loss

may be required to be recorded In addition to the annual impairment

evaluation the Company evaluates whether any triggering events

have occurred such as significant decrease in expected cash flows

or changes in market or other business conditions that may indicate

potential impairment of goodwill or other intangible assets Also

the Company monitors its market capitalization as compared with the

carrying value of the Company During the fourth fiscal quarter ended

June 28 2009 the Company performed its annual impairment testing

of goodwill and concluded that no impairment charges were required

The Company estimates the fair value of its reporting units based on

combination of market approach and an income approach The mar

ket approach is based on market data for group of guideline compa

nies The income approach is based on discounted cash flow analysis

The discount rate used in this analysis is determined by management

based on weighted average cost of capital which considers the risk

inherent in the business The estimate of cash flows and the discount

rate are subject to change depending on the economic environment

including factors such as interest rates expected returns in the equity

markets and business prospects for the end-markets served by the

Company The Company believes the market data used in the mar

ket approach and the estimated future cash flows and discount rate

used in the income approach are reasonable however changes in

estimates could materially affect the Companys estimates of the fair

value of the reporting units and therefore the results of the Companys

impairment analysis

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

In September 2006 the FASBs EITF reached consensus on EITF

Issue No 06-4 Accounting for Deferred Compensation and Postre

tirement Benefits Aspects of Endorsement Split-Dollar Life Insurance

Arrangements EITF 06-4 EITF 06-4 addresses the accounting for

endorsement split-dollar life insurance arrangements that provide

benefit to an employee that extends to postretirement periods The

Company adopted EITF 06-4 on June 30 2008 which did not have

material impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements

In February 2007 the FASB issued Statement of Financial Account

ing Standards SFAS No 159 The Fair Value Option for Financial

Assets and Financial Liabilities SFAS No 159 to permit all enti

ties to choose to elect at specified election dates to measure eligible

financial instruments at fair value In accordance with SFAS No 159

an entity shall report unrealized gains and losses on items for which

the fair value option has been elected in earnings at each subsequent

reporting date and recognize upfront costs and fees related to those

items in earnings as incurred and not deferred The Company adopted

the provisions of SFAS No 159 on June 30 2008 which did not have

material impact on its consolidated financial statements

In March 2008 the FASB Issued SFAS No 161 Disclosures about

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities an amendment of FASB

Statement No 133 which requires companies to disclose their objec

tives and strategies for using derivative instruments whether or not

designated as hedging instruments under SFAS No 133 SFAS No

161 was effective for the Company for the fiscal year ended June 28

2009 and did not have material impact on its Consolidated Financial

Statements
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continued

In May 2009 the FASB issued SEAS No 165 Subsequent Events

SEAS No 165 which establishes general standards of accounting

for and disclosure of events that occur after the balance sheet date but

before financial statements are issued or are available to be issued

SFAS No 165 was effective for the Company for the fiscal year ended

June 28 2009 and did not have material impact on its consolidated

financial statements The Company performed an evaluation of subse

quent events through August 28 2009 the date which the financial

statements were issued and determined no subsequent events had

occurred which would require changes to its accounting or disclosures

In September 2006 the EASB issued SEAS No 157 Eair Value Mea

surements SEAS No 157 to clarify
the definition of fair value

establish framework for measuring fair value and expand the dis

closures required relative to fair value measurements The Company

adopted the provisions of SEAS No 157 on June 30 2008 for financial

assets and liabilities which did not have material impact on its Con

solidated Elnancial Statements As permitted under EASB Staff Posi

tion 157-2 Effective Date of EASB Statement No 157 the Company

will defer the adoption of SEAS No 157 for its nonfinancial assets and

nonfinancial liabilities until the Companys fiscal year ended June 27

2010 The Company does not expect the adoption of SEAS No 157 to

have material impact on its consolidated financial statements

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In December 2007 the EASB issued SEAS No 141 Business Combi

nations SEAS No 141 which provides guidance on the account

ing and reporting for business combinations SEAS No 141 is effec

tive for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2008 The Company

adopted SEAS No 141R effective June 30 2009 and does not expect

the adoption to have material impact on its consolidated financial

statements

In June 2009 the FASB issued SEAS No 168 The EASB Account

ing Standards Codification and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted

Accounting Principles replacement of EASB Statement No 162

SEAS NO 168 SEAS No 168 provides for the EASB Accounting

Standards Codification the Codification to become the single offi

cial source of authoritative nongovernmental U.S Generally Accepted

Accounting Principles GAAP The Codification did not change U.S

GAAP but reorganizes the literature and is effective for the Companys

interim and annual periods ending after September 15 2009 The

Company does not expect the adoption of SEAS No 168 to have

material impact on its consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Income
amounts in thousands except pershare amounts

FISCAL YEAR ENDED

JUNE 28 JUNE 29 JULY
2009 2008 2007

Net sales $273368 279485 235203

Cost and expenses

Cost of sales 222583 224498 189408

Selling and administrative expense 32810 29557 26269

Interest expense 1294 1459 2241

Other expense income net 14 133 714

Earnings before income taxes 16667 23838 17999

Income tax expense 6329 9011 6656

Net earnings 10338 14827 11343

Basic net earnings per common share 0.67 0.98 0.75

Average basic common shares outstanding 15498 15198 15143

Diluted net earnings per common share 0.64 0.92 0.71

Average diluted common shares outstanding 16044 16138 16047

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

amounts in thousands except share amounts

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts and other receivables net

Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Deferred tax assets net

Total current assets

Property plant and equipment net

Intangible assets net

Goodwill net

Other assets net

Total assets

4297

37573

54686

1090

3055

100701

30624

11255

43457

4798

$190835

1646

40778

66927

1245

1960

112556

17248

1548

24292

4828

160472

JUNE 28
2009

JUNE 29
2008

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Current liabilities

Short-term borrowings
10500

Current maturities of long-term debt 6162 4682

Trade accounts payable
18354 22684

Accrued employee compensation 10957 13494

Other accrued liabilities 2483 2552

Cash advances from customers 6738 11897

Total current liabilities 44694 65809

Long-term advances from customers for purchase of materials 47 622

Deferred tax liabilities net 1885

Deferred gain on sale of real estate and other liabilities 1732 2125

Long-term debt 39326 447

Stockholders equity

Common stock $0.01 par value Authorized 40000000 shares

15958839 issued at June 28 2009 and 15773253 at

June 29 2008 including shares in treasury
160 158

Additional paid-in capital
14700 16547

Retained earnings
88939 78601

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 141

Less cost of common stock in treasury 56765 at

June 28 2009 and 419503 at June 29 2008 507 3837

Total stockholders equity 103151 91469

Total liabilities and stockholders equity
$190835 160472

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
amounts in thousands

FISCAL YEAR ENDED

JUNE 28 JUNE 29 JULY
2009 2008 2007

Cash flows from operating activities

Net earnings $10338 $14827 11343

Adjustments to reconcile net cash provided by operating activities

net of effects of acquisition

Depreciation and amortization 6930 5290 5030

Gain on sale of real estate 635
Amortization of deferred gain on sale of real estate 481 481 133
Loss on disposal of property plant and equipment 108 45

Stock-based compensation 1128 1445 1076

Other than temporary impairment of investments 26 59 179

Deferred taxes 790 361 1161

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts and notes receivable net 10480 10574 465
Inventories

18589 7210 5898
Prepaid expenses 259 1088 590
Trade accounts payable 9794 3531 2749

Accrued liabilities 3018 2350 3408

Advance payments from customers 5735 7316 2952
Net cash provided by operating activities 29620 18047 11951

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition net of cash acquired 45074
Additions to property plant and equipment 10799 4840 5220
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment and other assets 25 130 25

Additions to other assets and intangibles 652 480 1069
Proceeds from sale of real estate 9550

Proceeds from surrender of insurance policy 306

Other investing activities

Net cash used provided by investing activities 56500 5185 3592

Cash flows from financing activities

Borrowings on revolving credit
facility 50050 91278 69575

Payments of revolving credit
facility 60550 95603 74225

Excess tax benefits from stock option exercises 3083 213 405

Remittance of minimum taxes withheld as part of net share

settlement of stock option exercises 1689
Borrowings of long-term debt 42014 258

Repayments of long-term debt 1654 6302 11020
Transaction costs related to bank financing 274
Issuance of treasury stock 2055 781 1121

Purchase of treasury stock 3504 1975 2212
Net cash provided used by financing activities 29531 11608 16098
Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 2651 1254 555
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of fiscal year 1646 392 947

Cash and cash equivalents at end of fiscal year 4297 1646 392

Non-cash investing transactions

Increase in capital lease obligations

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity

amounts in thousands except share amounts

FISCAL YEAR ENDED

JUNE 28 JUNE 29 JULY

2009 2008 2007

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Common stock beginning of year
158 158 158

Shares issued during year

Common stock end of year
160 158 158

Paid-in capital beginning of year
16547 16174 15185

Stock compensation programs
1847 373 989

Paid-in capital end of year
14700 16547 16174

Retained earnings beginning of year 78601 63774 52431

Net earnings for the year
10338 14827 11343

Retained earnings end of year
88939 78601 63774

Accumulated other comprehensive loss beginning of year

Other comprehensive loss for the year
141

Accumulated other comprehensive loss end of year 141

Treasury stock beginning of year
3837 3696 2940

Acquisition of treasury stock 3504 1975 2212

Issuance of treasury stock 6834 1834 1607

Forfeiture of nonvested shares
151

Treasury stock end of year
507 3837 3696

Total stockholders equity $103151 91469 76410

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Net earnings
$10338 14827 11343

Other comprehensive loss 141

Total comprehensive income 10197 14827 11343

COMMON SHARES

Common stock beginning of year 15773253 15773253 15773253

Shares issued during year
185586

Common stock shares issued end of year 15958839 15773253 15773253

TREASURY SHARES

Treasury stock beginning of year
419503 506704 606262

Acquisition of shares 293004 145038 194010

Issuance of shares 655742 232239 293568

Treasury stock end of year
56765 419503 506704

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies Revenue Recognition and Cost of Sales

Nature of Operations

LaBarge Inc and subsidiaries the Company manufactures and

assists in the design and engineering of sophisticated electronic and

electromechanical systems and devices and complex interconnect

systems on contract basis for its customers in diverse markets

The Company markets its services to customers desiring an engineer

ing and manufacturing partner capable of developing and providing

products that can perform reliably in harsh environmental conditions

such as high and low temperatures severe shock and vibration The

Companys customers do business in variety of markets with signifi

cant revenues from customers in the defense government systems

medical aerospace natural resources industrial and other commer
cial markets As contract manufacturer revenues and

profit levels

are impacted primarily by the volume of sales in the particular period

Principles Of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of LaBarge

Inc and its wholly-owned subsidiaries Investments in less than 20%-

owned companies are accounted for at cost All inter-company bal

ances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation

Accounting Period

The Company uses fiscal year ending the Sunday closest to June 30

each fiscal quarter is 13 weeks Fiscal years 2009 2008 and 2007

consisted of 52 weeks

All subsequent events have been evaluated for disclosure in the finan

cial statements through August 28 2009 the date of filing

Segment Reporting Policy

The Company reports its operations as one segment

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity

with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America U.S GAAP requires management to make estimates and

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities

the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the

consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of rev

enues and expenses during the reporting periods Actual results could

differ from these estimates

The Companys revenue is derived from units and services delivered

pursuant to contracts The Company has significant number of

contracts for which revenue is accounted for under the percentage

of completion method using the units of delivery as the measure of

completion This method is consistent with Statement of Position

81i Accounting for Performance of Construction-Type and Certain

Production-Type Contracts SOP 81-1 The percentage of total rev

enue recognized from contracts within the scope of SOP 81-1 is gener

ally
40-60% of total revenue in any given quarter These contracts are

primarily fixed price contracts that vary widely in terms of size length

of performance period and expected gross profit margins Under the

units of delivery method the Company recognizes revenue when title

transfers which is usually upon shipment of the product or completion

of the service

The Company also sells products under purchase agreements supply

contracts and purchase orders that are not within the scope of SOP

81-1 The Company provides goods from continuing production over

period of time The Company builds units to the customer specifica

tions and based on firm purchase orders from the customer The pur

chase orders tend to be of relatively short duration and customers

place orders on periodic basis The pricing is generally fixed for some

length of time and the quantities are based on individual purchase

orders Revenue is recognized in accordance with Staff Accounting

Bulletin No 104 Revenue Recognition Revenue is recognized on

substantially all transactions when title transfers which is usually

upon shipment

Therefore revenue for contracts within the scope of SOP 81-1 and for

those not within the scope of SOP 81-i is recognized when title trans

fers which is usually upon shipment or completion of the service

However the cost of sales recognized under both contract types is

determined differently The percentage-of-completion method for con

tracts that are within the scope of SOP 81-1 gives effect to the most

recent contract value and estimates of cost at completion Contract

costs generally include all direct costs such as materials direct labor

subcontracts and indirect costs identifiable with or allocable to the

contracts Learning or start-up costs including tooling and set-up

costs incurred in connection with existing contracts are charged to

existing contracts The contract costs do not include any sales mar

keting or general and administrative costs Revenue is calculated as

the number of units shipped multiplied by the sales price per unit The

Company estimates the total revenue of the contract and the total

contract costs and calculates the contract cost percentage and gross

profit margin The gross profit during period is equal to the earned

revenue for the period times the estimated contract gross profit mar-
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gin Thus if no changes to estimates were made the procedure results

in every dollar of earned revenue having the same cost of earned rev

enue percentage and gross profit percentages This method is applied

consistently on all of the contracts accounted for under SOP 81-1

The Company periodically reviews all estimates to complete as

required by SOP 81-1 and the estimated total cost and expected gross

profit are revised as required over the life of the contract The revi

sion to the estimated total cost is accounted for as change of an

estimate cumulative catch up adjustment is recorded in the period

of the change in the estimated costs to complete the contract There

fore cost of sales and gross profit
in period includes cumulative

catch-up adjustment to reflect the adjustment of previously recog

nized
profit

associated with all prior period revenue recognized based

on the current estimate of gross profit margin as appropriate and

an entry to record the current period costs of sales and related gross

profit margin based on the current period sales multiplied by the cur

rent estimate of the gross profit margin on the contract Cumulative

adjustments are reported as component of cost of sales

In summary the cumulative gross profit margin recognized through

the end of the current period on contract will equal the current esti

mate of the gross profit margin on the contract multiplied by the con

tract revenues recognized through the end of the current period The

current period gross profit
will equal current period sales multiplied

by the expected gross profit margin on percentage basis on the

contract plus or minus any net effect of cumulative adjustments to

prior period sales under the contract

In addition when there is an anticipated loss on contract provision

for the entire loss is recorded in the period when the anticipated loss

is determined The loss is reported as component of cost of sales

Therefore the cumulative gross profit margin recognized through the

end of the current period on contract with an estimated loss will

equal the current estimate of the gross profit margin on the contract

multiplied by the contract revenues recognized through the end of the

current period plus the provision for the additional loss on contract

revenues yet to be recognized The current period gross profit on

contract with loss reserve will equal current period sales at 0%

gross profit margin plus or minus any net effect of cumulative adjust

ments to the loss reserve based on any changes to the estimated total

loss on the contract

This method of recording costs for contracts under SOP 81-1 is equiva

lent to Alternative as described in paragraph 80 of SOP 81-1

The contracts that are not subject to SOP 81-1 are not subject to esti

mated costs of completion Cost of sales under these contracts are based

on the actual cost of material labor and overhead charged to each job

The contract costs do not include any selling
and administrative expenses

During fiscal year 2007 the Company entered into an agreement

with an industrial customer to manufacture and supply certain parts

Under the Financial Accounting Standards Boards FASB Emerging

Issues Task Force EITF No 99-19 Reporting Revenue Gross as

Principal versus Net as an Agent the cost of the supplied parts is

netted against the invoice price to determine net sales when the part

is shipped For the fiscal year ended June 28 2009 the Companys net

sales recognized under this contract were $13.0 million related to the

manufactured assemblies and $493000 related to the supplied parts

On very limited number of transactions at customers request

the Company will recognize revenue when title passes but prior to

the shipment of the product to the customer As of June 28 2009

the Company has recognized revenue on products for which title has

transferred but the product has not been shipped to the customer of

$762000 The Company recognizes revenue for storage and other

related services as the services are provided

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable have been reduced by an allowance for amounts

that management estimates are un-collectable This estimated allow

ance is based primarily on managements evaluation of the financial

condition of the Companys customers The Company considers fac

tors which include but are not limited to the customers payment

history ii the customers current financial condition and iii any

other relevant information about the collectibility
of the receivable The

Company considers all information available to it in order to make an

informed and reasoned judgment as to whether it is probable that an

accounts receivable asset has been impaired as of specific date The

Companys policy on bad debt allowances for accounts receivable is

to provide for any invoice not collected in 360 days and to provide for

additional amounts where in the judgment of management such an

allowance is warranted based on the specific facts and circumstances

inventories

Inventories other than work-in-process inventoried costs relating to

those contracts accounted for under SOP 81-1 are carried at the lower

of cost or market value

Inventoried costs relating to contracts accounted for under SOP 81-1

are stated at the actual production cost including overhead tooling

and other related non-recurring costs incurred to date reduced by the

amounts identified with revenue recognized on units delivered Sell

ing and administrative expenses are not included in inventory costs

Inventoried costs related to these contracts are reduced as appropri

ate by charging any amounts in excess of estimated realizable value to

cost of sales The costs attributed to units delivered under these con

tracts are based on the estimated average cost of all units expected
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to be produced This average cost utilizes as appropriate the learning

curve concept which anticipates predictable decrease in unit costs

as tasks and production techniques become more efficient through

repetition In accordance with industry practice inventories include

amounts relating to long-term contracts that will not be realized in one

year Since the inventory balance is dependent on the estimated cost

at completion of contract inventory is impacted by all of the factors

described in the Revenue Recognition and Cost of Sales section above

In addition management regularly reviews all inventory for obsoles

cence to determine whether any write-down is necessary Various fac

tors are considered in making this determination including expected

program life recent sales history predicted trends and market condi

tions If actual demand or market conditions are less favorable than

those projected by management inventory write-downs may be

required For the fiscal years ended June 28 2009 June 29 2008 and

July 2007 expense for obsolete or slow-moving inventory charged

to income before income taxes was $1.5 million $1.9 million and

$1.3 million excluding the impact of the charges related to Eclipse

as described in Note of the Consolidated Financial Statements

respectively

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and
liability method

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated

future tax consequences attributable to differences between the finan

cial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and

their respective tax bases The Company has considered future tax

able income analyses and feasible tax planning strategies in assessing

the need for the valuation allowance Should the Company determine

that it would not be able to recognize all or part of its net deferred

tax assets in the future an adjustment to the carrying value of the

deferred tax assets would be charged to income in the period in which

such determination is made Effective July 2007 the Company

adopted the recognition and disclosure provision of Financial Account

ing Standards Board Interpretation No 48 Accounting for Uncertainty

in Income Taxes An Interpretation of FASB Statement 109 FIN

48 FIN 48 addresses the accounting for uncertain tax position that

Company has taken or expects to take on tax return The Company

recognizes interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in

income tax expense

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company considered the carrying amounts of cash and cash

equivalents securities and other current assets and liabilities includ

ing accounts receivable and accounts payable to approximate fair

value because of the short maturity of these financial instruments

The Company has considered amounts outstanding under the long-

term debt agreements and determined that carrying amounts recorded

in the financial statements are consistent with the estimated fair value

as of June 28 2009

Additionally the interest rate swap agreement further described in

Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements has been recorded

by the Company based on the estimated fair value as of June 28 2009

Property Plant and Equipment

Property plant and equipment is carried at cost and includes addi

tions and improvements which extend the remaining useful lives of the

assets Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method

Cash Equivalents

The Company considers cash equivalents to be temporary investments

that are readily convertible to cash such as certificates of deposit

commercial paper and treasury bills with original maturities of less

than three months

Cash Advances

The Company receives cash advances from customers under certain

contracts Cash advances are usually liquidated over the period of

product deliveries

Employee Benefit Plans

The Company has contributory savings plan covering certain employ

ees The Company expenses all plan costs as incurred

The Company offers non-qualified deferred compensation program

to certain key employees whereby they may defer portion of their

annual compensation for payment upon retirement plus guaranteed

return The program is unfunded however the Company purchases

Company-owned life insurance contracts through which the Company

will recover portion of its cost upon the death of the employee

The Company also offers an employee stock purchase plan that allows

eligible employees to purchase common stock at the end of each quar

ter at 15% below the market price as of the first or last day of the

quarter whichever is lower The Company recognizes an expense for

the 15% discount
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Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation under State

ments of Financial Accounting Standard SFAS No 123R SFAS No

123R which requires that all stock-based compensation be recog

nized as expense measured at the fair value of the award SFAS No

123R also requires that excess tax benefits related to stock option

exercises be reflected as financing cash inflows instead of operating

cash inflows

During the fiscal years ended June 28 2009 June 29 2008 and July

2007 the Company was notified that shares issued upon the exercise

of incentive stock options ISOs were sold prior to being held by the

employee for 12 months These disqualifying dispositions resulted in

an excess tax benefit for the Company Since the SOs vested prior to

adoption of the SEAS No 123R the entire tax benefit of $16000 for

fiscal year 2009 $213000 for fiscal year 2008 and $95000 for fiscal

year 2007 was recorded as an increase to additional paid-in capital

No stock options were issued in the years ended June 28 2009 June

29 2008 and July 2007 All stock options previously granted were at

prices not less than fair market value of the common stock at the grant

date These options expire in various periods through 2014

The Company has program to award performance units tied to finan

cial performance to certain key executives The awards have three-

year performance period and compensation expense is recognized

over three years No performance units were issuable for the fiscal

year 2009 as the performance conditions were not met Included

in diluted shares at June 28 2009 and June 29 2008 were 141923

shares issuable for fiscal 2008 performance as the performance con

dition had been met The Company issued 108084 shares related to

the fiscal year 2007 performance and recognized related compensa

tion expense in fiscal years 2009 2008 and 2007

For the fiscal year ended June 28 2009 total stock-based compen

sation was $1.1 million $678000 after-tax equivalent to earnings

per basic and diluted share of $0.04 For the fiscal year ended June

29 2008 total stock-based compensation was $1.4 million $891000

after-tax equivalent to earnings per basic and diluted share of $0.06

For the fiscal year ended July 2007 total stock-based compensation

was $1.2 million $733000 after-tax equivalent to earnings per basic

and diluted share of $0.05

Goodwill And Other Intangible Assets

In accordance with SFAS No 142 Goodwill and Other Intangible

Assets intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives and goodwill

are not subject to amortization All other intangible assets are amor

tized over their estimated useful lives Goodwill and other intangible

assets not subject to amortization are tested for impairment annually

or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that

the asset might be impaired This testing requires comparison of the

estimated fair values of the reporting units to the carrying values of

the reporting units When appropriate the carrying value of impaired

assets is reduced to fair value During the fourth quarter of 2009 the

Company completed its annual impairment test and determined that

the fair value of its reporting units are in excess of the carrying values

and that there was no impairment of goodwill Different assumptions

regarding such factors as sales levels and price changes labor and

material cost changes interest rates and productivity could affect

such valuations

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

In September 2006 the FASBs EITF reached consensus on EITF

Issue No 06-4 Accounting for Deferred Compensation and Postre

tirement Benefits Aspects of Endorsement Split-Dollar Life Insurance

Arrangements EITF 06-4 EITF 06-4 addresses the accounting for

endorsement split-dollar life insurance arrangements that provide

benefit to an employee that extends to postretirement periods The

Company adopted EITF 06-4 on June 30 2008 which did not have

material impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements

In February 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 159 The Fair Value

Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities SFAS No 159

to permit all entities to choose to elect at specified election dates to

measure eligible
financial instruments at fair value In accordance with

SFAS No 159 an entity shall report unrealized gains and losses on

items for which the fair value option has been elected in earnings at

each subsequent reporting date and recognize upfront costs and fees

related to those items in earnings as incurred and not deferred The

Company adopted the provisions of SEAS No 159 on June 30 2008

which did not have material impact on its consolidated financial

statements

In March 2008 the FASB Issued SEAS No 161 Disclosures about

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities an amendment of FASB

Statement No 133 which requires companies to disclose their objec

tives and strategies for using derivative instruments whether or not

designated as hedging instruments under SFAS No 133 SFAS No

161 was effective for the Company for the fiscal year ended June 28

2009 and did not have material impact on its Consolidated Financial

Statements
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In May 2009 the FASB issued SFAS No 165 Subsequent Events

SFAS No 165 which establishes general standards of accounting

for and disclosure of events that occur after the balance sheet date but

before financial statements are issued or are available to be issued

SFAS No 165 was effective for the Company for the fiscal year ended

June 28 2009 and did not have material impact on its consolidated

financial statements The Company performed an evaluation of subse

quent events through August 28 2009 the date which the financial

statements were issued and determined no subsequent events had

occurred which would require changes to its accounting or disclosures

In September 2006 the FASB issued SFAS No 157 Fair Value Mea

surements SFAS No 157 to clarify the definition of fair value

establish framework for measuring fair value and expand the dis

closures required relative to fair value measurements The Company

adopted the provisions of SFAS No 157 on June 30 2008 for financial

assets and liabilities which did not have material impact on its Con

solidated Financial Statements As permitted under FASB Staff Posi

tion 157-2 Effective Date of FASB Statement No 157 the Company

will defer the adoption of SFAS No 157 for its nonfinancial assets and

nonfinancial liabilities until the Companys fiscal year ended June 27

2010 The Company does not expect the adoption of SFAS No 157

related to nonfinancial assets and liabilities to have material impact

on its consolidated financial statements

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 141 Business Combi

nations SFAS No 141 which provides guidance on the accounting

and reporting for business combinations SFAS No 141R is effective

for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2008 The Company

adopted SFAS No 141 effective June 30 2009 and does not expect

the adoption to have material impact on its consolidated financial

statements

In June 2009 the FASB issued SFAS No 168 The FASB Account

ing Standards Codification and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted

Accounting Principles replacement of FASB Statement No 162

SFAS No 168 SFAS No 168 provides for the FASB Accounting

Standards Codification the Codification to become the single offi

cial source of authoritative nongovernmental U.S GAAP The Codifica

tion did not change U.S GAAP but reorganizes the literature and is

effective for the Companys interim and annual periods ending after

September 15 2009 The Company does not expect the adoption of

SFAS No 168 to have material impact on its consolidated financial

statements

Acquisition

On December 22 2008 the Company acquired substantially all of the

assets of Pensar Electronic Solutions LLC Pensar The acquisition of

Pensar located in Appleton Wisconsin provided the Company with

presence in the Upper Midwest and added significant new medical natu

ral resources and industrial accounts to the Companys customer mix

Pensar is contract electronics manufacturer that designs engineers

and manufactures low-to-medium volume high-mix complex printed

circuit board assemblies and higher-level electronic assemblies for

customers in variety of end markets Pensars calendar 2008 rev

enues were $52.4 million The company has long-term customer

relationships with industry leaders in variety of commercial markets

with the medical natural resources and industrial sectors accounting

for the largest contributions to revenues

The purchase price for the net assets acquired was $45.4 million In

addition the Company assumed working capital liabilities of approxi

mately $5.8 million primarily trade accounts payable and incurred

estimated transaction costs of $158000 Included in the current

assets acquired was $302000 of cash The purchase agreement

includes an earn-out provision based on Pensar attaining certain finan

cial targets for the periods ending June 28 2009 and June 27 2010

The financial targets for the period ending June 28 2009 were not met

and no additional consideration has been paid If the financial targets

are met for the 18 months ending June 27 2010 the sellers would

receive additional consideration of $2.2 million The acquisition was

financed with $35.0 million of senior debt $7.9 million of borrowings

under the Companys short-term revolving credit
facility

and $2.5 mil

lion in cash
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The initial purchase price has been allocated to Pensars net tangible

and intangible assets based upon their estimated fair value as of the

date of the acquisition The preliminary purchase price allocation as of

June 28 2009 was as follows

AS OF

JUNE 28 2009

14029

7369

10620

19165

51183

5807

5807

45376

The Company believes that substantially all of the goodwill will be

deductible for tax purposes The preliminary estimates of intan

gible assets include $9.7 million for Pensars customer list which

is expected to be amortized over eight years and $950000 for

employee non-compete contracts which is expected to be amortized

over two years At June 28 2009 the goodwill attributable to the Pen

sar acquisition was increased by $1.3 million as compared with the

initial allocation as of December 28 2008 primarily to reflect reduc

tion of the estimated value of the employee non-compete agreements

based on revised estimate of the useful life of the agreements

Sales attributable to Pensar were $25.9 million for the twelve months

ended June 28 2009 The impact on the Companys net earnings

for the fiscal year 2009 was loss of $481000 pretax $289000

after-tax which had $0.02 impact on basic and diluted earnings

per share

The following table represents LaBarges pro forma consolidated

results of operations as if the acquisition of Pensar had occurred at

the beginning of fiscal year 2008 Such results have been prepared

by adjusting the historical LaBarge results to include Pensar results

of operations and incremental interest and other expenses related to

acquisition debt The Pensar financial results in the pro forma table

are based on Pensars audited historical financial statements The

pro forma results do not include any cost savings that may result

from the combination of the LaBarge and Pensar operations The pro

forma results may not necessarily reflect the consolidated opera

tions that would have existed had the acquisition been completed at

the beginning of such periods nor are they necessarily indicative of

future results

in thousands

Pro forma financial results

dollars in thousands except per-share data

JUNE 28 JUNE 29
2009 2008

Net sales $298479 330468

Basic net earning per common share 0.71 1.07

Diluted net earnings per common share 0.68 1.01

Current assets

Property and equipment

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Total assets acquired

Current liabilities

Long-term liabilities

Total liabilities assumed

Net assets acquired

The pro forma consolidated results of operations for the fiscal year

ended June 28 2009 reduced the cost of sales for the acquired manu

facturing profit of $218000 that was capitalized as part of the inven

tory acquired and subsequently recognized in the cost of sales in

accordance with SFAS No 141 Business Combinations

Sales and Net Sales

Sales and net sales consist of the following

in thousands

FISCAL YEAR ENDED

JUNE 28 JUNE 29 JULY

2009 2008 2007

$274304 280354 236414

936 869 1211

$273368 279485 235203

Sales

Less sales discounts

Net sales

Geographic In formation

The Company has no sales offices or facilities outside of the United

States Sales for exports did not exceed 10% of total sales in any of the

fiscal years presented

Customer In formation

The Companys top three customers and their relative contributions to

sales for fiscal year ended June 28 2009 were as follows Owens-Illi

nois Group Inc $38.8 million 14.2% Raytheon Company $24.1 mil

lion 8.8% and Schlumberger Ltd $23.3 million 8.5% This compares

with Owens-Illinois Group Inc $39.8 million 14.2% Schlumberger

Ltd $31.2 million 11.2% and Modular Mining Systems Inc $26.2

million 9.4% for fiscal year ended June 29 2008 and Schlumberger

Ltd $30.3 million 12.9% Northrop Grumman Systems Corp $22.7

million 9.7% and Modular Mining Systems Inc $22.6 million 9.6%

for fiscal year ended July 2007
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Accounts and Other Receivables Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable related to the Pensar acquisition were $8.0 mil

lion atJune 28 2009 Included in accounts receivable atJune 28 2009

was $791000 of receivables due directly from the U.S Government

and $13.8 million due from customers related to contracts with the

U.S Government Included in accounts receivable at June 29 2008

was $408000 of receivables due directly from the U.S Government

and $13.6 million due from customers related to contracts with the

U.S Government

At June 28 2009 the amounts due from the three largest accounts

receivable debtors and the percentage of total accounts receivable

represented by those amounts were $6.2 million 17.5% $3.4 mil

lion 9.7% and $2.6 million 7.3% This compares with $10.3 million

25.7% $3.4 million 8.5% and $2.9 million 7.2% at June 29 2008

On November 25 2008 Eclipse Aviation Corporation Eclipse

customer of the Company announced that it filed petition for relief

under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code The Com

pany recorded additional selling and administrative expense of $3.7

million in the quarter ended December 28 2008 to reserve for the

receivables due to the Company from Eclipse The Company also took

charges against inventory as described in more detail in Note On

March 2009 the Eclipse bankruptcy case was converted to Chapter

liquidation During the quarter ended March 29 2009 the Company

wrote-off the entire trade receivables against the allowance for doubt

ful accounts The Company does not expect any recovery from the

bankruptcy estate

Other current receivables for fiscal years ended June 28 2009 and

June 29 2008 included an income tax receivable of $2.2 million and

$778000 respectively

Excluding the Eclipse charge total expense for the year was $262000

which primarily relates to reserve for start-up company that has

stopped making payments on its account

Raw materials

Work in progress

Inventoried costs relating to long-term

contracts net of amounts attributable to

revenues recognized to date 9296 14078

Finished goods 2720 3321

Total $54686 $66927

Included in the inventory balance at June 28 2009 is $5.0 million

attributable to the Pensar acquisition

For the fiscal year ended June 28 2009 and June 29 2008 expense

for obsolescence charged to income before taxes was $5.7 million and

$1.9 million respectively The expense for obsolescence in the fiscal

year ended June 28 2009 includes $4.2 million charge related to the

Eclipse bankruptcy described in Note

Accounts and other receivables consist of the following

in thousands

Billed shipments

Less allowance for doubtful accounts

Trade receivables net

Other current receivables

This account represents amounts that may be uncollectible in future

periods

in thousands

JUNE 28 JUNE 29

2009 2008 ADDITIONS/

BALANCE RECOVERIES BALANCE
$35269 40105

FISCAL BEGINNING CHARGED TO LESS END OF

350 252 YEAR OF PERIOD EXPENSE DEDUCTIONS PERIOD

34919 39853 2007 $174 76 36 $214

2654 925 2008 214 72 34 252

$37573 40778 2009 252 3943 3845 350

Inventories

Inventories consist of the following

in thousands

JUNE 28
2009

$38902

3768

JUNE 29
2008

$47221

2307

34 LaBarge Inc 2009



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

continued

As described in Note Eclipse has filed for bankruptcy under Chapter

The Company had approximately $4.6 million of inventory related to

the production of the Eclipse E500 aircraft that was written down to its

market value during the quarter ended December 28 2008 The Com

pany analyzed the inventory to reasonably determine the lower of cost

or market value in
light of the significant uncertainty surrounding the

Companys future role in the production of the Eclipse E500 aircraft

if any As result of this analysis the Company recorded additional

cost of sales expense of $4.2 million to record inventory at the lower

of cost or market value during the quarter ended December 28 2008

The remaining inventory was valued at $422000 which the Company

was able to recover by June 28 2009 by selling some items to brokers

and returning some items to vendors As of June 28 2009 the carrying

value of inventory related to Eclipse is zero

The following table shows the cost elements included in the invento

ried costs related to long-term contracts

in thousands

JUNE 28 JUNE 29
2009 2008

Production costs of goods

currently in process $9115 9977

Excess of production costs of

delivered units over the estimated

average cost of all units expected to

be produced including tooling and

non-recurring costs 621 3954

Unrecovered costs subject to

future negotiation 69 387

Reserve for contracts with estimated

costs in excess of contract revenues 509 240
Total inventoried costs $9296 $14078

Selling and administrative expenses are not included in inventory costs

Included in the Excess of production costs of delivered units at June

29 2008 is $1.5 million related to the Eclipse contract This deferred

cost was written off in the quarter ended December 28 2008 as part

of the $4.2 million charge described above The remaining excess pro

duction costs have declined by $1.8 million as compared with June

29 2008 Deferred production costs generally tend to be significant

on large multi-year contracts for which the Company has not previ

ously produced the product As of June 28 2009 the Company has

completed or is nearing completion on several such large multi-year

contracts There are fewer similar such contracts in the early stage of

production as compared with June 29 2008

The inventoried costs relating to long-term contracts includes unre

covered costs of $69000 and $387000 at June 28 2009 and June 29

2008 respectively which are subject to future determination through

negotiation or other procedures not complete at June 28 2009 In the

opinion of management these costs will be recovered by contract

modification

The Company records loss reserve when the estimated costs of

contract exceed the net realizable value of such contract The Com

pany currently has two contracts that generate the majority of the loss

reserves Both contracts are fixed price contracts where the Company

underestimated the materials cost and the inflation in commodity

prices when the contracts were bid The Company has recorded

reserve equal to the amount that estimated costs would exceed the

net realizable revenue over the contract The increase in the reserve

from June 29 2008 is due to new contract entered into in 2009

where loss is anticipated

Land

Building and improvements

Leasehold improvements

Machinery and equipment

Furniture and fixtures

Computer equipment

Construction in progress

Less accumulated

depreciation 30823 27049

$30624 $17248

The acquisition of Pensar added $7.2 million $6.7 million net of accu

mulated depreciation to Property Plant and Equipment at June 28

2009 Other major expenditures included the purchase of the Tulsa

facility for $2.5 million and the purchase of surface mount assembly

lines to increase capabilities at the Pittsburgh and Tulsa facilities for

$4.2 million

Property Plant and Equipment

Property plant and equipment is summarized as follows

in thousands

JUNE 28
2009

1083

10398

3694

38099

2834

3454

1885

61447

JUNE 29
2008

68

4425

4150

29560

2456

3172

466

44297

ESTIMATED

USEFUL LIFE

IN YEARS

3-40

15

2- 16

16
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Depreciation expense was $4.9 million $4.2 million and $3.8 million

for the fiscal years ended June 28 2009 June 29 2008 and July

2007 respectively $496000 of depreciation expense in the fiscal

year ended June 28 2009 was attributable to the Pensar acquisition

Intangible Assets Net
__________

Goodwill

Goodwill is summarized as follows

in thousands

Intangible assets net are summarized as follows

in thousands

Goodwill

Less accumulated amortization

Net goodwill

JUNE 28
2009

$43657

200

$43457

JUNE 29
2008

24492

200

24292

JUNE 28 JUNE 29

2009 2008
The increase in goodwill resulted from the acquisition of Pensar

5133 4090

3972 3457 Other Assets
-_____________________________

Other assets are summarized as follows

in thousands

Software

Less accumulated amortization

Net software 1161 633

Customer lists 13070 3400

Less accumulated amortization 3679 2485

Net customer lists 9391 915

Employee agreements 950

Less accumulated amortization 247

Net employee agreements 703

11255 1548

Intangibles are amortized over periods ranging from two to eight years

Amortization expense was $2.0 million for the fiscal year ended June

28 2009 $1.1 million for fiscal year ended June 29 2008 and $1.2

million for the fiscal year ended July 2007

The Company anticipates that amortization expense will approximate

$2.7 million for fiscal year 2010 $2.1 million for fiscal year 2011

$1.8 million for fiscal year 2012 $430000 for fiscal year 2013 and

$430000 for fiscal year 2014

At June 28 2009 the Pensar operation had software of $204000

$167000 net of amortization customer list of $9.7 million $9.0

million net of amortization and employee agreements of $950000

$703000 net of amortization

JUNE 28
2009

$4482

47

JUNE 29
2008

4612

112

Cash value of life insurance

Deposits licenses and other net

Securities held for sale 26

Deferred financing costs net 233 42

Other 36 36

$4798 $4828

The increase in deferred financing costs is the result of borrowing to

finance the Pensar acquisition The cash value of life insurance relates

to Company-owned life insurance policies on certain current and

retired key employees as described in Note 13 to the Consolidated

Financial Statements

10 Sale-Leaseback Transaction

On March 22 2007 the Company sold its headquarters building com

plex for $9.6 million Simultaneously the Company entered into six-

year lease with the buildings new owner The lease on the building

qualifies as an operating lease LaBarges continuing involvement with

the property is more than minor part but less than substantially all of

the use of the property The gain on the transaction was $3.5 million

The profit on the sale in excess of the present value of the minimum

lease payments over the lease term was $635000 pretax $391000

after-tax and was recorded as gain in other income in the fiscal

year ended July 2007 The remainder of the gain is being amortized

over the six years of the lease as reduction in rent expense Of this
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amount $481000 was recognized in the fiscal year ended June 28

2009 $481000 in the fiscal year ended June 29 2008 and $133000

in the fiscal year ended July 2007

The obligations for future minimum lease payments as of June 29

2008 and the amortization of the remaining deferred gain is

in thousands

MINIMUM DEFERRED GAIN NET RENTAL

FISCAL YEAR LEASE PAYMENTS AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

2010 603 481 122

2011 603 481 122

2012 603 481 122

2013 435 346 89

Senior Lender

The Company entered into senior secured loan agreement on

December 22 2008 amended on January 30 2009 The following is

summary of certain provisions of the agreement

revolving credit facility up to $30.0 million available for direct bor

rowings or letters of credit The facility is based on borrowing base

formula equal to the sum of 85% of eligible receivables and 35% of

eligible inventories As of June 28 2009 there were no outstanding

loans under the revolving credit facility As of June 28 2009 letters

of credit issued were $1.1 million leaving an aggregate of $28.9 mil

lion available under the revolving credit facility This credit facility

matures on December 28 2011

11 Short- and Long-Term Obligations

Short-term borrowings long-term debt and the current maturities of

long-term debt consist of the following

amounts in thousands

JUNE 28 JUNE 29
2009 2008

Short-term borrowings

Revolving credit agreement

Balance at year-end 10500

Interest rate at year-end 4.00% 3.83%

Average amount of

short-term borrowings

outstanding during period 2206 14764

Average interest rate for fiscal year 4.10% 5.79%

Maximum short-term borrowings

at any month-end 5875 19025

Senior long-term debt

Senior lender

Term loan $45000 4500

Other 488 629

Total senior long-term debt 45488 5129

Less current maturities 6162 4682

Long-term debt less current maturities $39326 447

The average interest rate was computed by dividing the sum of daily

interest costs by the sum of the daily borrowings for the respective

periods

Total net cash payments for interest in fiscal years 2009 2008 and

2007 were $897000 $1.5 million and $2.1 million respectively

An aggregate $45.0 million term loan with principal payments begin

ning in September 2009 at quarterly rate of $2.0 million increas

ing to $2.5 million in September 2010 and increasing to $2.7 million

in September 2011 The balance is due on December 28 2011

Interest on the revolving facility and the term loan is calculated at

base rate or LIBOR plus stated spread based on certain ratios For

the fiscal year ended June 28 2009 the average rate was approxi

mately 3.9%

All loans are secured by substantially all the assets of the Company

other than real estate

Covenants and certain financial performance criteria consisting

of Earnings Before Interest Taxes Depreciation and Amortization

EBITDA in relation to debt minimum net worth and operating cash

flow in relation to fixed charges The Company was in compliance

with its borrowing agreement covenants as of and during the fiscal

year ended June 28 2009 The write-off of certain assets related to

Eclipse during the fiscal year ended June 28 2009 did not impact the

Companys debt covenant compliance

With the acquisition of Pensar and the term loan associated with

the purchase the Companys exposure to variable interest rates

has increased This
variability

and market
volatility creates level of

uncertainty in interest payments on period-to-period basis
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Interest Rate Swap

To mitigate the risk associated with interest rate volatility during the

period ended June 28 2009 the Company entered into an interest

rate swap agreement with bank This pay-fixed receive-floating rate

swap limits the Companys exposure to interest rate variability and

allows for better cash flow control The swap is not used for speculat

ing purposes

Under the agreement the Company fixed the interest payments to

base rate of 1.89% plus stated spread based on certain ratios The

beginning notional amount is $35.0 million which will amortize simul

taneously with the term loan schedule in the associated loan agree

ment and will mature on December 28 2011

The interest rate swap agreement has been designated as cash flow

hedging instrument under SFAS No 133 Accounting for Derivative

Instruments and Hedging Activities and the Company has formally

documented designated and assessed the effectiveness of the inter

est rate swap The financial statement impact of ineffectiveness for

the fiscal year ended June 28 2009 was immaterial

Fair Value

At June 28 2009 the Company recorded liability of $234000 clas

sified within other long-term liabilities in the consolidated balance

sheet and accumulated other comprehensive loss of $141000 net

of deferred income tax effects of $93000 relating to the fair market

value of the swap contract

The Company adopted SFAS No 157 Eair Value Measurements on

its financial assets and liabilities effective June 30 2008 SEAS No 157

establishes three-level hierarchy for disclosure of fair value measure

ments based upon the transparency of inputs to the valuation of an

asset or liability as of the measurement date as follows

Level inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices

unadjusted for identical assets or liabilities in active markets

Level inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted

prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets and

inputs that are observable for the asset or liability either directly

or indirectly for substantially the full term of the financial instru

ment

Level inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable

and significant to the fair value measurement

The Companys interest rate swap is valued using present value cal

culation based on an implied forward LIBOR curve adjusted for the

Companys credit risk and is classified within Level of the valuation

hierarchy as presented below

in thousands
_________________________________

FAIR VALUE AS OF JUNE 28 2009

LEVEL LEVEL LEVEL TOTAL

Other long-term liabilities

Interest rate swap derivative 234 234

$234 $234

Other Long-Term Debt

Other long-term debt includes capital lease agreements with outstand

ing balances totaling $238000 at June 28 2009 and $336000 at June

29 2008

The aggregate maturities of long-term obligations are as follows

in thousands

FISCAL YEAR

2010 6162

2011 12069

2012 27257

2013

2014

Total $45488

12 Operating Leases

The Company operates certain of its manufacturing facilities in leased

premises and with leased equipment under noncancellable operating

lease agreements having an initial term of more than one year and

expiring at various dates through 2020

Rental expense under operating leases is as follows

in thousands

FISCALYEAR ENDED

JUNE 28 JUNE 29 JULY

2009 2008 2007

Initial term of more

than one year 2985 2894 2526

Deferred gain on

sale leaseback 481 481 133

Short-term rentals 155 44

2504 2568 2437
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At June 28 2009 the future minimum lease payments under operating

leases with initial noncancellable terms in excess of one year are as

follows

pensation and interest thereon is included in accrued employee com

pensation and was $5.2 million at June 28 2009 compared with $4.8

million at June 29 2008

in thousands

FISCAL YEAR

2010 $2658

2011 1640

2012 1087

2013 877

2014 258

Thereafter 1666

Total 8186

The $1.7 million due after 2014 relates to an obligation under long-

term facility lease in Huntsville Arkansas

13 Employee Benefit Plans

The Company has an employee stock purchase plan that allows eli

gible employees to purchase common stock at the end of each quarter

at 15% below the market price as of the first or last day of the quar

ter whichever is lower During the fiscal year ended June 28 2009

25946 shares were purchased by the Company in aggregate amount

of $318000 for which the Company recognized expense of approxi

mately $59000 For the fiscal year ended June 29 2008 24166

shares were purchased by the Company in the aggregate amount of

$307000 for which the Company recognized expense of approxi

mately $65000 For the fiscal year ended July 2007 26481 shares

were purchased by the Company in the aggregate amount of $325000

for which the Company recognized expense of approximately $70000

The Company has suspended the employee stock purchase plan as of

April 17 2009

The Company has qualified contributory savings plan under Section

401k of the Internal Revenue Code for employees meeting certain

service requirements The plan allows eligible employees to contrib

ute up to 60% of their compensation with the Company matching 50%

of the first $25 per month and 25% of the excess on the first 8% of

this contribution During fiscal years 2009 2008 and 2007 Company

matching contributions were $419000 $494000 and $456000

respectively The Company has suspended the matching contributions

as of April 17 2009 In addition at the discretion of the Board of Direc

tors the Company may also make contributions dependent on profits

each year for the benefit of all eligible employees under the plan There

were no such contributions for fiscal years 2009 2008 and 2007

The Company has deferred compensation plan for certain employees

who due to Internal Revenue Service IRS guidelines cannot take

full advantage of the contributory savings plan This plan which is not

required to be funded allows eligible employees to defer portions of

their current compensation and the Company guarantees an interest

rate between prime and prime pIus 2% To support the deferred com

pensation plan the Company may elect to purchase Company-owned

life insurance The increase in the cash value of the life insurance poli

cies exceeded the premiums paid by $95000 $90000 and $85000

in fiscal years 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively The cash surrender

value of the Company-owned life insurance related to deferred com

pensation is included in other assets along with other policies owned

by the Company and was $1.7 million at June 28 2009 compared

with $1.6 million at June 29 2008 The liability for the deferred com

14 Other Expense Income Net

The components of other income net are as follows

amounts in thousands

FISCAL YEAR ENDED

JUNE 28 JUNE 29 JULY

2009 2008 2007

Interest income 11 83

Property rental income 646

Property rental expense 447

Gain on sale of real estate 635

Other than temporary

impairment of investments 26 59 179

Other net 85 24

$14 133 714

Refer to Note 10 for discussion of the gain on the sale of real estate in

the fiscal year ended July 2007
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15 Income Taxes

Total income tax expense benefit was allocated as follows

in thousands

JUNE 28 JUNE 29 JULY

2009 2008 2007

Current

U.S Federal 4431 7211 6728

State and Local 1011 1443 1089

Total 5442 8654 7817

Deferred

U.S Federal 750 245 950

State and Local 137 112 211

Total 887 357 1161

Income tax expense

from operations

U.S Federal 5181 7455 5778

State and Local 1148 1556 878

Total 6329 9011 6656

Income tax expense benefit differed from the amounts computed by

applying the U.S Federal income tax rate of 35% as follows

in thousands

JUNE 28 JUNE 29 JULY

2009 2008 2007

Computed expected

tax expense 5834 8343 6300

Increase decrease in

income taxes resulting from

Federal tax credit

current year 30

Tax exposure adjustment 185 135 151

State and local tax net 813 1007 655

Other 133 204 118

Total 6329 9011 6656

The Company regularly reviews its potential tax liabilities for tax years

subject to audit

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant

portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are pre

sented below

in thousands

JUNE 28 JUNE 29
2009 2008

Deferred tax assets

Inventories due to additional

costs inventoried

for tax purposes pursuant to

the Tax Reform Act of 1986

and inventory valuation provisions 1917 994

Gain on sale-leaseback transaction 714 891

Deferred compensation 2668 2632

Loss reserves on long-term contracts 217 96

Accrued vacation 462 462

Other than temporary

impairment of asset held for sale 307 292

Other 361 224

Total gross deferred tax assets 6646 5591

Deferred tax liabilities

Goodwill and intangibles $2775 $2180

Property plant and equipment

principally due to

differences in depreciation methods 2618 1447

Other 83
Total gross deferred tax liabilities $5476 $3631

Net deferred tax assets 1170 1960

valuation allowance is provided if necessary to reduce the deferred

tax assets to level which more likely
than not will be realized The

net deferred tax assets reflect managements belief that it is more

likely than not that future operating results will generate sufficient tax

able income to realize the deferred tax assets

Total cash payments for federal and state income taxes were $4.1 mil

lion for fiscal 2009 $8.4 million for fiscal 2008 and $7.7 million for

fiscal 2007
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On July 2007 the Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards

Board Interpretation No 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income

Taxes An Interpretation of FASB Statement No 109 The amount

of unrecognized tax benefits as of June 28 2009 included $158000

of uncertain tax benefits and other items which would impact the

Companys provision for income taxes and effective tax rate if recog

nized The amount of unrecognized tax benefits as of June 29 2008

included $274000 of uncertain tax benefits and other items which

would impact the Companys provision for income taxes and effective

tax rate if recognized

The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to uncertain

tax positions in income tax expense As of June 28 2009 there was

approximately $53000 of accrued interest related to uncertain tax

positions

The Companys federal income tax return for fiscal years 2009 and

2008 are open tax years In August 2009 the Company was notified

that the IRS would be auditing the fiscal year 2008 return The Com

pany files in numerous state jurisdictions with varying statutes of limi

tation open from 2004 through 2009 depending on each jurisdictions

unique tax laws During the fiscal year ended June 29 2008 the IRS

concluded its examination of the Companys federal returns for fiscal

years 2005 and 2006 As result of adjustments to the Companys

claimed research and experimentation credits and other issues the

Company settled with the IRS for $236000 The unrecognized tax

benefits were decreased by $371000 as result of the settlement and

the expiration of certain statutes The Company recorded $15000 of

the additional expense related to the settlement during the fiscal year

ended June 29 2008

reconciliation of the beginning and ending amounts of unrecognized

tax benefits is as follows

Balance at beginning of the year

Increase in unrecognized benefits

Reductions for tax positions

of prior years 116 135

Settlements with tax authorities 236
Balance at end of year 158 274

FISCAL YEAR ENDED

JUNE 28 JUNE 29 JULY

2009 2008 2007

Net earnings 10338 14827 11343

Basic net earnings

per common share 0.67 0.98 0.75

Diluted net earnings

per common share 0.64 0.92 0.71

Basic earnings per share are calculated using the weighted average

number of common shares outstanding during the period Diluted

earnings per share are calculated using the weighted average number

of common shares outstanding during the period plus shares issuable

upon vesting of restricted shares and the assumed exercise of dilutive

common share options by using the treasury stock method

in thousands

JUNE 28 JUNE 29 JULY

2009 2008 2007

Average common shares

outstanding basic 15498 15198 15143

Dilutive options and

nonvested shares 546 940 904

Adjusted average common

shares outstanding diluted 16044 16138 16047

All outstanding stock options and nonvested shares at June 28 2009

June 29 2008 and July 2007 were dilutive The stock options expire

in various periods through 2014 The Company had awarded certain

key executives nonvested shares tied to the Companys fiscal year

2008 financial performance The compensation expense related to

these awards is recognized quarterly The nonvested shares vest over

the next fiscal year

16 Earnings Per Common Share

Basic and diluted earnings per common share are computed as follows

amounts in thousands except per-share amounts

in thousands

JUNE 28
2009

274

JUNE 29
2008

630

15
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17 Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has established the 1993 Incentive Stock Option Plan

the 1995 Incentive Stock Option Plan and the 1999 Non-Qualified

Stock Option Plan collectively the Plans The Plans provide for the

issuance of up to 2.2 million shares to be granted in the form of stock-

based awards to key employees of the Company In addition pursuant

to the 2004 Long Term Incentive Plan the Company provides

for the issuance of up to 850000 shares to be granted in the form of

stock-based awards to certain key employees and nonemployee direc

tors The Company may satisfy the awards upon exercise with either

new or treasury shares The Companys stock compensation awards

outstanding at June 28 2009 include stock options restricted stock

and performance units

As described in Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements the

Company has an employee stock purchase plan which expense is rec

ognized in stock-based compensation expense

Stock-based compensation was lower for the fiscal year ended June

28 2009 because the Company did not achieve the financial goals tied

to fiscal year 2009 performance units For the fiscal year ended June

28 2009 total stock-based compensation was $1.1 million $678000

after-tax equivalent to earnings per basic and diluted shares of

$0.04 For the fiscal year ended June 29 2008 total stock-based com

pensation was $1.4 million $891000 after-tax equivalent to earnings

per basic and diluted share of $0.06 For the fiscal year ended July

2007 total stock-based compensation was $1.2 million $733000

after-tax equivalent to earnings per basic and dilutive share of $0.05

During the fiscal years ended June 28 2009 June 29 2008 and
July

2007 total stock-based compensation expense was $1.1 million $1.4

million and $1.2 million respectively

As of June 28 2009 the total unrecognized compensation expense

related to nonvested shares and performance units was $615000

pretax and the period over which it is expected to be recognized is

approximately one year At June 29 2008 the total unrecognized

compensation expense related to nonvested awards including stock

options performance units and nonvested shares was $1.7 million

pretax and the period over which it was expected to be recognized

was 1.7 years
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Stock Options

summary of the Companys Plans as of June 28 2009 is presented below

NUMBER OF

SHARES

1771151

WEIGHTED

AVERAGE

FAIR VALUE

GRANTED

OPTIONS

The intrinsic value of stock option is the amount by which the June 28 2009 market value of the underlying stock exceeds the exercise price

of the option

The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised during the fiscal years ended June 28 2009 and June 29 2008 was $8.2 million and $792000

respectively The cash received in fiscal years 2009 2008 and 2007 from the exercise of stock options was $295000 $474000 and $585000

respectively The exercise period for all stock options generally may not exceed 10 years from the date of grant Stock option grants to individuals

generally become exercisable over service period of one to five years There were no stock options granted in the fiscal year ended June 29 2008

WEIGHTED

AVERAGE

EXERCISE PRICE

3.94

NUMBER OF

SHARES

EXERCISABLE

1573119

WEIGHTED

AVERAGE

EXERCISE PRICE

3.52Outstanding at July 2006

Canceled 2000 8.54

Exercised 187838 4.25

Outstanding at July 2007 1581313 3.90 1581313 3.90

Canceled

Exercised 99989 4.69

Outstanding atJune 29 2008 1481324 3.84 1481324 3.84

Canceled 4500 8.54

Exercised 892285 3.08

Outstanding at June 28 2009 584539 4.97 584539 4.97

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding and exercisable as of June 28 2009

WEIGHTED WEIGHTED

AVERAGE AVERAGE AGGREGATE INTRINSIC

RANGE OF NUMBER REMAINING EXERCISE VALUE

EXERCISE PRICES OUTSTANDING CONTRACTUAL LIFE PRICE IN MILLIONS

2.50 3.00 212787 1.6 2.72 1378

3.01 5.96 169100 4.0 3.52 960

5.97 8.54 202652 5.2 8.54 134

584539 3.5 4.97 2472

43 LaBarge Inc 2009



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

continued

Performance Units and Non vested Stock

The Companys LTIP provides for the issuance of performance units

which will be settled in stock subject to the achievement of the Com

panys financial goals Settlement will be made pursuant to range

of opportunities relative to net earnings No settlement will occur for

results below the minimum threshold and additional shares shall be

issued if the performance exceeds the targeted goals The compensa

tion cost of performance units is subject to adjustment based upon the

attainability of the target goals

Upon achievement of the performance goals shares are awarded in

the employees name but are still subject to two-year vesting condi

tion If employment is terminated other than due to death or disabil

ity prior to the vesting period the shares are forfeited Compensa

tion expense is recognized over the performance period plus vesting

period The awards are treated as liability award during the perfor

mance period and as an equity award once the performance targets

are settled Awards vest on the last day of the second year following

the performance period

Nonvested shares at July 2006

Issued 81193 13.33

Vested 51251 18.00

Forfeited 11932 15.25

Nonvested shares at July 2007 74261 13.33

Issued 108084 12.29

Vested 74261 13.33

Forfeited

Nonvested shares at June 29 2008 108084 12.29

Issued 141923 13.00

Vested 108084 12.29

Forfeited

Nonvested shares at June 28 2009 141923 13.00

For the fiscal years ended 2009 2008 and 2007 compensation

expense related to the LTIP was $1.1 million $1.4 million and $1.1 mil

lion respectively

summary of the nonvested shares as of June 28 2009 is presented

below

NUMBER OF

NON VESTED

SHARES

56251

WEIGHTED

AVERAGE

GRANT PRICE

18.00
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18 Selected Quarterly Financial Data Unaudited

Summarized quarterly financial data is set forth below

amounts in thousands except per-share amounts

SEPTEMBER 28 DECEMBER 28 MARCH 29 JUNE 28
FISCAL YEAR 2009 2008 2008 2009 2009 TOTAL

Net sales 68192 68207 72216 64753 273368

Costofsales 53929 57955 57558 53141 222583

Selling and administrative expense 8270 9642 7828 7070 32810

Interest expense 158 145 508 483 1294

Other expense income net 10 14

Net earnings before income taxes 5825 459 6318 4065 16667

Income tax expense 2156 210 2506 1457 6329

Net earnings 3669 249 3812 2608 10338

Basic net earnings per

common share 0.24 0.02 0.24 0.17 0.67

Average common

shares outstanding 15234 15451 15656 15651 15498

Diluted net earnings

percommonshare 0.23 0.02 0.24 0.16 0.64

Average diluted common

shares outstanding 16090 16059 16042 16029 16044

SEPTEMBER 30 DECEMBER 30 MARCH 30 JUNE 29
FISCAL YEAR 2008 2007 2007 2008 2008 TOTAL

Net sales 59190 67052 75442 77801 279485

Cost of sales 47818 53676 60410 62594 224498

Selling and administrative

expense 6947 7465 7689 7456 29557

Interest expense 427 387 392 253 1459

Otherexpense net 10 22 21 80 133

Net earnings before

income taxes 3988 5502 6930 7418 23838

Income tax expense 1468 2105 2597 2841 9011

Net earnings 2520 3397 4333 4577 14827

Basic net earnings per

common share 0.17 0.22 0.29 0.30 0.98

Average common shares

outstanding 15200 15216 15200 15171 15198

Diluted net earnings

per common share 0.16 0.21 0.27 0.28 0.92

Average diluted common

shares outstanding 16018 16092 16056 16115 16138

45 laBarge Inc 2009



Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a- 15f of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended Under the supervision and with the participation of management including the principal executive

officer and the principal financial officer the Company assessed the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting as of June 28

2009 In making this assessment management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Com

mission COSO in the report entitled Internal Control-Integrated Framework Although there are inherent limitations in the effectiveness of any

system of internal control over financial reporting management has concluded that as of June 28 2009 the Companys internal control over

financial reporting is effective based on its evaluation

On December 22 2008 the Company completed the acquisition of Pensar Electronic Solutions Pensar As permitted by guidance of the

Securities and Exchange Commission management excluded Pensar from the scope of its assessment of the effectiveness of the Companys

internal control over financial reporting as of June 28 2009 Total assets related to Pensar as of June 28 2009 were $48.9 million and revenues

for the six-month period subsequent to the acquisition December 22 2008 June 28 2009 were $25.9 million

The Companys independent registered public accounting firm KPMG LLP has issued an attestation report on the Companys internal control over

financial reporting which is included herein

Craig LaBarge

Chief Executive Officer President and Director

Donald Nonnenkamp

Vice President Chief Financial Officer and Secretary
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

LaBarge Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of LaBarge Inc and subsidiaries the Company as of June 28 2009 and June 29

2008 and the related consolidated statements of income stockholders equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended

June 28 2009 We also have audited the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of June 28 2009 based on criteria established

in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO The Com

panys management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting

and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Managements Report on

Internal Control over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and an opinion on

the Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards

require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material mis

statement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audits of the consolidated

financial statements included examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements assessing

the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation Our

audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk

that material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk

Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audits provide

reasonable basis for our opinions

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of finan

cial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in

reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable assurance

that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting prin

ciples and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors

of the company and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of

the companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

47 LaBarge Inc 2009



Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

continued

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also projections of any

evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or

that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the financial position of LaBarge Inc

and subsidiaries as of June 28 2009 and June 29 2008 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the three-year

period ended June 28 2009 in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles Also in our opinion the Company maintained in all

material respects effective internal control over financial reporting as of June 28 2009 based on criteria established in Internal Control Inte

grated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

The Company acquired Pensar Electronic Solutions Pensar during the fiscal year ended June 28 2009 and management excluded from

its assessment of the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of June 28 2009 Pensars internal control over

financial reporting associated with total assets of $48.9 million and total revenues of $25.9 million included in the consolidated financial state

ments of the Company as of and for the fiscal year ended June 28 2009 Our audit of internal control over financial reporting of the Company also

excluded an evaluation of the internal control over financial reporting of Pensar

KPMG LLP

St Louis Missouri

August 28 2009
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